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MEMORANDUM OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
AMICUS CURIAE

STATEMENT

These are consolidated appeals from orders entered by

the District Court for the Northern District of Illinois

Eastern Division striking the class action allegations of

two complaints seeking damages for alleged violations of the



ledera sectrities laws App 56 In 1963 during public

ofierirg oi 100 000 stares of the stock tf the dclendant

IacIatc Insttiment Co Inc tte plaintiff in Ashbrook

purchased 1T hares and the plaintiff in Hohmann purchased

500 shares App 47

Ihey brought these actions based on alleged violations

of the antifraud provisions the federal securities laws to

lamages from Packard its of fic rs and directors and

rite undennl er of the public offering App 7l9 The

actions were brought on behalt ot the named plaintitts and all

other purchasers of shares allegedly injured by the acts

complained of App l3l4 15

The In erest of the Commission

The Securities and Exchange Commission submits this

netorartdum amicus curiae ta urge that thc cuurt below

erred in holding that these actiris may not be maintained as

class ac ions under Rule 23 the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure While the Commission asserts no special

expertisa with respect to the proper interpretation of

Rule 21 it believes that the applictton of that Rule to

actions arising under the federal securities laws is

watter of great importance to the effectiveness of the

civil remedies provided by those laws and that the civil



remedies in tuin provide necessary supplement to

Commission action Case Go Borak 317 U.S 426

432 1964

Although the Securities and Exchange Commission is

empowered to act in the public interest for the protection
1/

of investors none of the measures available to the

Commission under the Securities Act or the ecurities

Exchange Act is designed to provide compensation to injured

investors for damages which they may have suffered as

1/ The Commission is empowered to conduct investigations
Section 20a of the Securities Act of 1933 15 U.S.C
77ta Section 21a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 15 U.S.C 78ua to seek injunctive relief
Section 20b of the Securities Act 15 U.S.C 77tb
Section 21e of the Secuiities Exchange Act 15 U.S.C
78ue to suspend trading in securities Section 15c

and 19a4 of the Securities Exchange Act 15 U.S.C

78oc5 and 78sa4 to apply administrative sanctions

as for example by the issuance of ea stop order

suspending the effectiveness of the registration

statement Section 8d of the Securities Act
15 U.S.C 77hd or by revocation of the registration
of securities broker and dealer Section 15b5 of

the Securities Exchange Act 15 U.S.C 78ob5 and to

refer evidence of violations to the Attorney General for

criminal prosecution Section 20b of the Securities

Act 15 U.S.C 77tb Section 21e of the Securities

Exchange Act 15 U.S.C 78ue
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2/

ult of viola ion of those Acts For this the are

private rights ot action either express or implied

The Allejtionsooç
The complaint in Ashbrook seeks recovery pursuant to

Sections and 15 of tie ecurities Act of 1933 15 U.S.C

77k and App 14 The complaint in gnn alleges

violations of Section 10b of the Securicies Exchange Act

of 1934 15 U.S.C 78jb and Rule lOb promulgated by the

Ccnmissicn thereunder 17 CFR 240 lOb-S App lll2 13

21 In rare case as an adjunct to injunctive relief the

Cosunission has urged court to deprive violators of

their illegal gains by directing that these be paid to

individuals who have been injured by their violations
Sec untie and Exch eComaission Th

3jjjj1lFyrCo 258 Supp 262 S.D IY 1966
iuaiJ peqjg C.A No 30882 Even in such cases

the Conntssion does not seek to make investors whole
it seeks merely to deter violations by attempting to

have them give up their profits Fayment of such

profits to persons njured by the violations is not

necessarily substitute for recovery of damages since

the aggregate oi investor injuries may be different

fros the profits defendants may have un1awfuily mace

3/ See e.g Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act 15

U.S.C 77k and 771 Sections 9e and 18 of the Securities

Exciange Act 15 U.SC 78ie and 78r

See CaseCo Borak 37 U.S 4zo 1964
Frail obinson 203 2d oil CA 1953 Vine

Beneficial Finance Co 374 2d 627 CA ssLLiorari
denied 36 U3LW 3226 U.S Dec 1967



In both actions the basis of the claimed liability is the

failure of the prospectus and registration statement relating

to the public offering to have disclosed that Packard had

found it necessary to redesign principal product line that

had accounted for approximately 2/3 of its total sales during

the prior year and that this product-line change would cause

stoppage of production material increase in expenses

and reduction of earnings for the then current six-month

pertod App 11 16-17 In Hohmann the complaint also

alleges failure to disclose that portion of the proceeds

from the public offering would be applied to finance the

increased expenses and to replace working capital depleted by

the allegedly anticipated but undisclosed product-line

change App 12-13

complaints in these actions were filed In 1963

App 24 The order of the court below granting the

defendants motions to strike the class action aspects of

the complaints App 56 was entered in accordance with

memorandum of decision App 47-56 on June 30 1967 at

time when plaintiffs counsel indicated that they v.ere ready

for trial App 38-39 The court below ruling that Rule 23

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure as amended effective
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July 1966 should govern disposition of the motions

App 47 held that plaintiffs had failed to meet the

requirements of the amended rule because they did not show

that they will fairly and adequately protect the interests

of the class under Rule 23a4 App 55 and that the

court cannot findas it would be required to do under

paragraph of Rule 23 before this cause could proceed

as class actionthat class action is superior to other

available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of

2/

the controversy Ibid

2/ The text of the Rule as amended is set forth in the

appendix hereto



DISCUSS ION

orit of the Class Act ion

The court below gave no reason for its refusal to

find under the circumstances present here that

class action is superior to other available methods for

the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy

App 55 other than that contained in its quotation from

Purolator Prod jnc 41 FR.D 542 S.D

N.Y l966 It was held in that case that the action

there involved could not be maintained on behalf of the

class because problems of diverse litigation in

several forums are presented App 55 Apparently the

court below held that the absence of other litigation

establishes that class action cannot be superior to other

available procedurea

Amended Rule 23 recognizes that the existence of

other litigation may suggest use of the class action to

avoid multiplicity of lawsuits But the fact that few

or no other actions have been brought does not justify

finding that class action is not superior to alterna

tive procedures Not only does the class action afford

convenient device for the avoidance of multiplicity of



lawsuits it is also an ppropriate means for the aggrega

tion of claims hy large number of persons wFose individual

injuries may he too small to permit the separate pursuit of

remedies based upon conunon wrong

Thus in an actiun which similar to the eases at

bar was brought on behalf of purchasers of securities to

recover damages flowing from an allegedly false registration

statement it was held that class action was appropriate

because

In our complex modern nconnvia ytem where Cngle
harmful act may result in demages to great many
people

tive action as device forv cancla ims which
taken individuaj are too_small tJify legal
action but which_arniZcansizeiftaken
asa roa In situation where we depend on

individual initiative particularly the initiative

of lawyer for the assertion of rtghts there

must be practical methQd for combining these small

claims and the representative action provides that

method The holders of one or two of the debentures

involved in thepp ent action could har rd

to take the risk of an individual action The

use fulnesof the resentative action asadevice
for the geation_of malielaimsisLersuas ive

of the neeessipf liberal construction of
Rule2 Footnote omitted emphasis added

Escott Barchris Co trCor 340 2d 731 733 CA
certiorarideniedsub nom DrexelCo Hall 382

U.S 816 1965 This is in accord with the statement of

this Court in case involving antitrust litigation in



which analogous proolems arise In Weeks Bareco Oil

Co 125 id 84 88 CA 1941 this Court said

The history of class suit litigation its

development over century of growth the origin
and status of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure are all persuasive of the

necessity of liberal constrnction of this Rule

23 and its application to this class of litiga
tion It should be construed to permit class

suit where several persons jointly act to the

injury of many persons so numerous that their

voluntary unanimously joining in suit is

concedely improbably and impracticable

This Court further observed at 90

To permit the defendants to contest liThility

with each claimant in single separate suit
would in many cases give defendants an advantage

which would be almost equivalent to closing the

door of justice to all small claimants This is

what we think the class suit practice was to

prevent

5imilarly in Eisen Carlisle1ajin 370 2d 119

121 CA 1966 certiorari denied 386 US 1035 1967

it was recently noted that in case where the individual

claims may he small Idjismissal of the class action

will for all practical purposes terminate the litigation

The court in that case denied motion to dismiss an appeal

from an order dismissing class action under the new Rule

observing

1e can safely assume that no lawyer of competence
is going to undertake this complex and costly case



to recover $70 for tidividual plaintiffj
Id at 170

Thc Advisory Committee or the Rules commenting

upon the application of the amended Rule 23 has emphasized

that isbues relating to the maintenance of class actions

under paragraph b3 must be judged not quantitatively

but in terms of the economic practicalities While the

Notes of the Advisory Coninittee 39 F.RD at 104 recognized

that interests of individuals in conducting separate

lawsuits may be so strong as to call for denial of class

action they also noted ibidthat these interests may

be theoretic rather than practical the amounts at

stake for individuals may be so small that separate suits

6/

would be impracticable Even where there may be members

6/ Similarly Professor Benjamin Kaplan who was Reporter
to the Advisory Coimnittee on Civil Rules from its

organitation in 1960 to July 1966 the date upon
which tie amendments to the rules became effective
has recently observed that

The rule sets out number of matters pertinent to

the b3 findings and among them the interest of

members of the class in individually controlling the

prosecution or defense of separate actions This

interest can be high where the stake of each member

bulks large and his will and ability to take care of

himself are strong the interest may be no more than

theoretic where the individual stake is so small as

to make separate action impractible

Kaplan
Amendment of the Federal Rul ivilProcgJfl 81

Harv Rev 356 391 1967 footnotes omitted



of the class titl substantial claiss in fraud cases such

as these they may be ignorant of tI-eir rights This too

may account for lack of other actions It has been pointed

out that the twin factors of ignorance and expense

are present in virtually all cases of large-scale group

injuries

It is of course possible that the lack of litiga

tion by other members of the class may in some circumstances

suggest that the claims presented by plaintiffs are of

doubtful validity Tf that be the case the defendants may

seek dismissal of the complaint move for summary judgment

or prove their defense upon trial But the dismissal of

lass-action claims is an inappropriate alternative to

those procedures

ji Kalven Rosenfield TheCojorarFtinctionoftthe
Class Suit of Chi Rev 684 685 1941 Those

authors go on to explain Id at 686

Modcrn society seems increasingly to expose men to such

group injuries for which individually they are in

poor position to seek legal redress either because they

do not know enough or because such redress is dispro
portionately expensive lf each is left to assert his

rights alone if and when he can there will at best be

random and fragmentary enforcement if there is any
at all This result is not only unfortunate in the

particular case but it will operate seriously to impair
the deterrent effect of the sanctions which underlie

much contemporary law The problem of fashioning an

effective and inclusive group remedy is thus major

one



In cass ouch as hose hcrc involved here widefl

spreac injury is -lieged bave een caused by misrepte

sntations in ingle proslctus resolutior of the counnon

questions of fact and law will result in aubstantial economies

of tire effort and expense for both the defendants and

the rlaintiifs rf representative parties are permitted to

offer proof on behalf of tI-e class on these issues This

is apparently why the Advisory Coimnittee specifically

ref crreu to the usefulness of the class action in the

pLutU ion of iaud u-timts stating tht

fraud perpetrated on numerous persons by
the use of similar misrepresentations may be an

appealing situation fot class action and it may
remain so despite the need if liability found
for separate determination of the damages suffered

by individuals within the class 39 F.R.D at 103

Aa appreciation of thes factors has led courts to

uphold maintenance of class action under the federal

securities law in antifraud cases which re closely

analogous to the instant case See Fischer Kletz 41

FRDO 377 S.D 196b where plaintiffs in each of

several consolidated class actions allded that the class

members had purchased securities issued by the defendant

corporation at prices which had been artificially inflated

by number of false and misleading financial statements
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issued by the defendant corporation er one and one-half

period See also pw Anderson No 66 Civ 1057

8/

ED N.Y filed January 1968 cm9jaeEg Hotel

2y2B2Lc1inton Inc 41 FRD 42 S.D N.Y 1966 Cf

ot Barchris Constr Cp While these

decisions are consistent with the duty of the courts

to be alert to provide such remedies as are necesaary to

make effective the congressional purpose in enacting the

securities laws gj 377 U.S

at 433 the contrary result reached below malces the perfor

mance of that duty more difficult The congressional pur

pose may as easily he thwarted by restrictive application

of an essential procedural device as by denial of the

underlying substantive rights sought thereby to be enforced

As this Court has recognized in Weeks Bareco_OilCo

125 2d at 90 in answering objections to the class

action in that case

If the defense is to create barriers and to

8/ The opinion of Judge Weinstein in Anderson

reflects detailed analysis of the factors pertinent

to the superiority of the class action proceaure in

securitiestraud case Issues pertinent to adequacy
of representation discussed infra pp 15-25 as well as

the role of the court in applying the requirements of

amended Rule 23 are also discussed



l4

make itition expensive so as to avoid trial
the opposition defendants to single trial

can better be understooc and appreciated Such

position does not appeal to chancellor who

wants to know the trutF and to fix liabilities

on the basis of the true facts Original

emphasis
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Ajgoi Rgppeseatation

The Court below based its finding that plaintiffs

had no shown that they will faUly and adequately pros

tect the interests of the class App 55 upon the facts

thct there is one pl.nntiff in each actior aeeking to

represent class consisting of treat number of purchasers

in which no other suits are pending in which no additional

purchasers have sought to intervene and in which less than

30% of select mailing group have responded favorably to

TI ttei hilding out the possibility of favorablc vetdict

with no assumption of any personal obligation tpp 54

footnote omitted We believe that reliance of the court

on these tactors is contrary to the decisions of this Court

aria the policies underlying the use of the class action

procedure as device for the aggregition of small claims

In Hunter AtchisonlS R1 188 2d 294

301 ccrtiorar__denicd sub nom Hunter vpjerd
342 U.S 819 1931 where defendants offered proof that

niruber of the 42 named plaintiffs did not have claims

rcpresentatrv oi the class this Court held that thc

suit was properly instituted as class action providing

proof shows one of the fortytwo qualifies to represent

the class Emphasis added



In Weeks BarecooilCo two plaintiffs

suing on their own behalf and on behalf of appioximately

900 other oil jobbers sought to recover danages against

nineteen different oil companies While this Court held

that the district court had not abused its discretion in

finding that the plaintiffs did not adequately represent

the class the decis on_was based on def endantst show iijg

9/

th the plaintifft cledns were nof thsas
Ihis Court did not rely on the fact that only two plaintiffs

pufportad n1reacnt class or 9C0 pC5OP3 as he court

91 he complaint alleged that the defendants reduced the

jobbers profit margins by unlawfully conspiring to

fix the price of the spot tank car price of gasoline

which under the contracts of the two plaintiffs
determined the cost of gasoline to them 125 2d at

87 The Court found that there was considerable

variance in the terms of the contracts between the 900

members of the nurported class and the 19 defendants

and that only few of them contained the standard for

determination of the jobbers cost price provided for

in plaintiffs contracts Id at 88 93 Urdw the

amended Rule the question of adequacy of representation

might not be reached on such facts since there is

separately stated requirement set forth in paragiapha3 of amended Rule 93 that the individual claims

of representative parties must be typical
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below apparently believed Indeed after noting upon

review of pertinent authorities that some courts have

recognized that great disparity between the number actually

suing and the number in the class is of some importance

l2 2d at 91 this Court expressly stated id0 at 93

Our conclusion is that dismissal would not be

justified on the ground that plaintiffs are too

few in number compared to the total number in the

class Emphasis added

These decisions make clear that the number of

plaintiffs in relation to the size of the class is

irrelcvant to the question of the plaintiffs qualifica

tions to act on behalf of absent members of the class and

recognize that it is anomalous to suggest that device for

the protection of large number of small claimants may not

employed on tIe initiative of an individual who has

small but representative economic interest in the outcomes

As pointed out in the quotation from Escott Barchris

gpq it upon individual initia

tive particularly the initiative of lawyers that the
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10
effectiveness of the class suit lcp Not only the

in tiative to irstitut th action the motivation to

prosecute it diligently and effectively would presumably

be unaffected by the small rnmber of reprcsentative parties

beiure tte court but would be greater as the

aggregate of the claims of the dabs is increased by the

greater nuaber of persons representecU

In Booth General jamics QflG 764 Supp

465 ND IlL 1967 the court in upholding the right

under Rala 23 if c2.nglP vq yar tc ainrc1i c1js

action on behalf of scver huidred other taxpayers

noted that the taxpayer suit device would lose its utility

if we held that single taxpayer could not provide repre

sentatror for his fellow taxpayerso Ith at 47l

3imilarly application of teat of proportionately

10/ Because of the lwyerts incentive the suit which

might be broug1t for the original plaintiff alone is

legitimately turnec ist labs suit fur a110 And

nore important the 0urt whih mcht nt be brought

at all bciuse the demancs on lcgal skill and time

sould be disproportionate to thc i3inal clients

stake can when turnec into class suit be brought
and handled in manner cotmrcnuratc with its mag
nitudeç Thus tue class suit aa way of redressing

group wrongs is semipublic remedy administered by

the lawyer in private prictice Kalven

Rosenfield pa n0 at 71/.



large representation ould preclude th possibility of

prosecuting representat ye actions under the federal secu

rities laws in those instancea where the rongdoers have

been most successful in perpetrating their fraud by

infliti01g harm on sufficiently large number of persons

indeed if this be the test applied as many as 100 plaintiffs

might not meet the standard in instances where class

numbers thousands of persons although that number would

seem to approach if not exceed the limits of practical

ininle

The absence of other lawsuits based upon claims

similar to those auvanced herein 1iFewise suggests no

deficiency In plairtiffs ability to represent the class

under the standard provided by the new Rule Where

11/ In conjunctsoi with its disusion of the adequacy of

the represcntation the court below stated that under

Rule 23b3 one of the matteis to be considered by

the court is the exteit and ture of any litigation

concerning the controversy already commenced by or

against members of the class App 51 That

factor among others is pertinent to the findings

required by paragraph b3 to be made ie whether

common questions raised by the complaint predominate

over those affecting only individual class members and

whether class action is superior to other adiudica

tive procedures See anra pp lO11 None of the

factors set forth in that paragraph purnort to have

relevance to any of the prerequisites to class action

set forth in paragraph of the Rule of which

adequacy of representation is one See Kaplan ara
at 391
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as is then ations the twin factors of ignorance and

12/

expcnse may well explain toe lad of other lawsuits

it cannot reason-bly be suggested that thu ii-ction of

other members of the class casts doubt upon the adequacy

of those who have shown the initiative to act on behalf

of alL

The court below also reled upon the absence of

inteivention Intervention may of course be employed

under amended Rule 23 as means for strengthening repre

sentation it fault is tound with the way in which one or

more typical claimants are proceediig on behalf of

13

class But the court below did not suggest that the

claims made by plaintiffs are not typical that plaintiffs

have failed adequately to present those claims or to

prosecute the action that plaintstfs in any manner have inter

ests conflicting with those whon they purport to represent or

that in ary other relevant respect plaintiffs are improper

12/ See and accompanyiig text

13/ See paragraph d3 and the Notes of the Advisory

Committee with respect thereto 39 RD at l07



2l

representatives or inadequate or incompetent to perform
14

the tasks they have undertaken

The reliance of the court below on the absence

of intervention in these actions by other members of the

class App 4951 54 ignores an essential distinction

between the provisions of amended Rule 23 and those of

the former Rule Under the former Rule the class action

in cases such as those at bar was generally viewed merely

as device for permissive joinder since it was held that

no member of class in such case was bound by judg

ment unless he had intervened therein See

Ljotco 144 2d 387 390 CA 1944

Kainz AnIzBus2Inc 194 2d 737 744745

CA 1952 4ctip Moores Federal Practice 2310

at 3442 2d ed 196/ But cC Weeks Bareco Oil Co0

2L 125 2d at 91 93 Thus unless at some stage

14/ Absent members of the class who have not requested

exclusion are entitled to enter an appearance through

counsel and thus safeguard their individual interests

paragraph c2C But the entry of such an appears

ance without more gives counsel no right actively to

participate in the case See Qi at

392 137



the proceed mb absent member tic cvened such clas

action lad no utility and the taiiure at bubstantial

number to intervene provided Ian tar list issal

rep esentative claims See Qppqæeimei J19PSJc

Go stj Kaina AtheuserBusch1nc supra Under

amended Rule 23 however similar conequcnce do no flow

trot lack of intervention sit Il absent members of

the represented class will be bound by the judgment of the

rourt utfiess they ecprcssly request cxclusic from the

sec paragraph c2
SLice Rule 23c3 now pray des hat absent meabers

of the repxe0ented cias wilt be bound by tie judgment of

the court unless they expressly request exclusion courts

at in for fan an deiuate protection of ii nterests

the ctirt lOb of vcd av Ic gTeQler rmi thnn tiudir

the smcr pr vision But it doe no fcllow frcm this that

the nerequisite of adequacy of rprescntation 0hould bn so

onstrued t1at th advantages of the class suit procedure

will rarely be available to those sho Qould normally find it

econonically impracticable to seek ndi idual rcovery aid who

have not requested exclusion The Rule mandates specific

procedures and requirements and grant to the court broad
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measure of discretion appropriate to assure that the

interests of absent persons will be fairly and sdequately

represented in the prosecution of the actior Class members

may enter an appearance through counsel paragraph c2
the court may narrotv the issues nd redefine the class as

to which it will permit representation paragraph c4
and it may make appropriate orders imposing conditions on

the representative parties paragraph d3 or requiring

that other steps be taken for the protection of the members

of ti clacs par grn d2 In no vent can the

binding effect of jud.pent under the new Rule be said to

require more stringent st than that applied in Weeks

Bareco Oil Co discussed supj pp 13 l6l7 since

this Courts decision ii that a-c Was sed upoi an

assumption that those of the class ho are not plaintiffs

will he bound by the judgrrent 125 2d at 93

Under the new Rule the binding effect of judgment

in any action brought pursuant to paragraph b3 is

founded upon notice required to be directed in the best

practicable manner to all members of the class advising

each that the court will exclude him from the class if he

so requests by specified date Paragraph c2A
The notice must also state that the judgmert will
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include all members who do not request exclusion para

graph c2B and that any member who does not request

exclusion may if he desires enter an appearance through

his counsel paragraph c2C The letter permitted to

be sent by the court below prior to the effective date of

the amendment to the Rule did not purport to meet the

notice requirements of paragraph c2 and is plainly

15/

inadequate for that purpose

The Commission believes that the question whether

the renresentative parties do in fact provide fair and

adequate representation can be examined by the court at all

stages of the proceeding Whenever the court entertains

151 In an effort to determine the adequacy of the repre
sentation the court below permitted the plaintiffs

to send letters to 600 purchasers of the stock in

question advising them of the pendency of the action

and inquiring whether they approved its continuance

and approved the representation afforded by the

plaintiffs App 52-53 In attributing significance

to the fact that only 30 percent of those solicited

had responded favorably the court below erroneously

assumed that plaintiffs had duty to show affirmative

support by members of the class Amended Rule 23

does not impose such duty The provisions of

paragraph c2 require that notice of the class

action he given to permit those who do not support its

maintenance the opportunity to request exclusion from

the class but that paragraph clearly contemplates

that the action will continue thereafter on behalf

of those who do not choose to do so



doubt it may issue whatever orders are appropriate to cure

remediable deficiencies See 19 2223 Dismissal

of the representative claits on this ground however should

be employed only as last resort and then only after

careful weighing of the harm to members of class for whom

the class action may be the only practicable means of redres

for alleged injuries--a consideration whici- is wholly lack

ing in the opinion of the court below

CONCLUS ION

or the foregoing reasons the judgment of the

district court in each of these cases should be reversed

Respectfully submitted

TIJILIP LOOMIS JR
General Counsel

DAVID FERBER

Solicitor

KICHARD PHILLIPS

Assistant General Counsel

RICHARD NATHAN

Attorney

Securities and Exchange Courtission

Washington 20549

Dated January 16 1968
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APPENDIX

RULE 23CLASS ACTIONS

Prerequisites to Class Action

One or more members of class may sue or be sued as

representative parties on behalf of all only if the

class is so numerous that joinder of all members is

impracticable there are questions of law or fact

common to the class the claims or defenses of the

representative parties are typical of the claims or

defenses of the class and the representative parties
will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the

class

Class Actions Maintainable

An action may be maintained as class action if

the prerequisites of subdivision are satisfied and

in addition

the prosecution of separate actions by or

against individual members of the class would create

risk of

inconsistent or varying adjudications with

respect to individual members of the class which would

establish incompatible standards of conduct for the

party opposing the class or

adjudications with respect to individual

members of the class which could as practical matter

be dispositive of the interests of the other members

not parties to the adjudications or substantially

impair or impede their ability to protect their interests
or

the party opposing the class has acted or

refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the

class thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief

or corresponding declaratory relief with respect to

the class as whole or

the court finds that the questions of law or

fact common to the members of the class predominate
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over any questions affecting only individual members
and that class action is superior to other available

method for the fair and efficient adjudication of the

controversy The matters pertinent to the findings

include the interest of 1ers of the class in

individually controlling the prosecution or defense of
separate actions the extent and nature of any

litigation concerning the controverey already coasuced
by or against mater of the class the desirability
or undeeirability of concentrating the litigation of the

claims in the particular forum the difficulties

likely to be encountered in the management of class

action

Determination by Order Whether Class Action to

be Msintained Notice Judgment Actions Conducted

Partially as Class Actions

As soon as practicable after the coencement
of an action brought as class action the court

shall determine by order whether it is to be so maintained
An order under this subdivision may be conditioflal and

may be altered or amended before the decision on the

merits

In any class action maintained under subditisionb3 the court shall direct to the members of the class
the best notice practicable under the circumstances

including individual notice to all members who can be

identified through reasonable effort The notice shall

advise each member that the court will exclude
him from the class if he so requests by specified date

the judgment whether favorable or not flll includi

all sabers who do not request exclusion and any
meter who does not request exclusion may if he dasires
entei an appearance through his counsel

The judgment in an action maintained as

class action under subdivision bl or b2
whether or not favorable to the class shall include

and describe those whom the court finds to be .inembirs

of the class The judgment in an action maintained as

class action under subdivision b3 whether or

not favorable to the class shall inqludp and specify
or diesciibe those to whom the notice provided in
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subdivision c2 was directed and who have not

requested exclusion and whom the court finds to be

members of the class

When appropriate an action may be brought

or maintained as class action with respect to particular

issues or class may be divided into subclasses and

each subclass treated as class and the provisions of

this rule shall then be construed and applied accordingly

Orders in Conduct of Actions0

In the conduct of actions to which this rule applies
the court may make appropriate orders determining
the course or proceedings or prescribing measures to

prevent undue repetition or complication in the present
ation of evidence or argment requiring for the

protection of the members of the class or otherwise for

the fair conduct of the action that notice be given

in such manner as the court may direct to some or all

of the members of any step in the action or of the

proposed extent of the judgment or of the opportunity
of members to signify whether they consider the repre
sentation fair and adequate to intervene and present
claims or defenses or otherwise to come into the

action imposing conditions on the representative

parties or on intervenors requiring that the pleadings
be amended to eliminate therefrom allegations as to

representation of absent persons and that the action

proceed accordingly dealing with similar procedural
matters0 The orders may be combined with an order under

Rule 16 and may be altered or amended as may be desirable

from time to time0

Dismissal or Compromise

class action shall not be dismissed or compromised
without the approval of the court and notice of the

proposed dismissal or compromise shall be given to all

members of the class in such manner as the court directs0

As amended Feb0 28 1966 eff July 1966 U.S.CO

App Supp II 1965-66


